
MEETING AGENDA 

 

Appearance Commission - CANCELED 

Village of Homewood 

March 02, 2023 

Meeting Start Time: 6:00 PM 

Village Hall Board Room 

2020 Chestnut Road, Homewood, IL 

Commission Meetings will be held as in-person meetings. In addition to in-person public comment during the meeting, members of the 
public may submit written comments by email to pzc@homewoodil.gov or by placing written comments in the drop box outside Village Hall. 
Comments submitted before 4:00 p.m. on the meeting date will be distributed to all Commission members prior to the meeting. 

Please see end of agenda for virtual meeting information. 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Minutes: 

Approve minutes from the January 5, 2023 meeting of the Appearance Commission. 

4. Public Comments 

5. Regular Business: 

Case 23-04: Building Accent Lighting for 2033 Ridge Road (Hartford Building) 
POSTPONED At Request of the Applicant 

6. Old Business: 

Commission and Development Updates Memo 

7. New Business: 

Determine a date for a Special Meeting for a Workshop on the Appearance Plan Update. 
Which date is preferred by Commission members: Wednesday March 29, or Thursday March 
30? 

8. Adjourn 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

The public is invited to the meeting using the link below to join Webinar: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84411188079?pwd=RzFRZzZmeC9RU25CN0ZhYzA0S0V6UT09 

To listen to the Meeting via phone:    Dial:   1-312-626-6799 
Webinar ID: 844 1118 8079              Passcode: 170845 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84411188079?pwd=RzFRZzZmeC9RU25CN0ZhYzA0S0V6UT09


VILLAGE OF HOMEWOOD 

 

Meeting Minutes | January 5, 2023 1 of 5 

C:\Users\MeetingsOfficeUser4\AppData\Local\Temp\tmp8E8E.tmp Last Revised: 02/24/2023 

 

MEEETING MINUTES DATE OF MEETING: January 5, 2023 

APPEARANCE COMMISSION Village Hall Board Room 

6:00 pm 2020 Chestnut Street 
 Homewood, IL 60430 

CALL TO ORDER: 
Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak called the meeting to order at 6:04pm. 

ROLL CALL: 

Members Scheffke, Quirke, Zander, Kidd, and Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak were present. Member 
Preston and Chairman Wright was absent.  In attendance from the Village were Village Planner Valerie 
Berstene and Building Department Secretary Darlene Leonard. Four people were in the audience, and 
one person was on Zoom. 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak asked if there were any changes or corrections to the meeting minutes from 
September 1, 2022. There were no changes or corrections. A motion was made by Chair Pro-tem 
Hrymak to approve the minutes of September 1, 2022. 

AYES: Members Quirke, Zander, and Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak 
NAYS: None 
ABSTENTIONS: Members Scheffke and Kidd 
ABSENT: Member Preston and Chairman Wright 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak introduced and welcomed the new members to the Commission, Members 
Scheffke and Kidd. 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

CASE 22-46 – 18046 Halsted Street – CD One Price Cleaners Exterior Alterations and Sign 
Variance 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak introduced the case and asked Village Planner Berstene to present the case. 

Village Planner Berstene presented the case and stated that the exterior alteration of the drop box 
window would look the same, but would allow for afterhours drop offs. She identified the 
recommended conditions to add the additional masonry sill and associate with the motion that they 
must maintain 60% transparency of the windows, and comply with all building code requirements.  

Village Planner Berstene explained the request for an additional 39 sf for the proposed signage. The 
proposed signage is 56 sf on the wall and 12 sf on the pole sign for a total or 68 sf.  

2



 

Meeting Minutes | January 5, 2023 2 of 5 

C:\Users\MeetingsOfficeUser4\AppData\Local\Temp\tmp8E8E.tmp Last Revised: 02/24/2023 

 

Appearance Commission Village of Homewood 

Several options were presented to reduce the signage square footage to reduce the needed square 
footage for the sign variance, including eliminating the circle on the signage, reducing the size of the 
entire sign, and reducing the size of just the circle. 

Piyush Patel, the owner of the cleaners, stated the business does have a long name and that the letters 
are not that big, they are about 11-3/4” and he does want the signage to be visible. 

Member Quirke stated the building was originally approved for 21 feet per unit and asked how it 
expanded and changed. Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak asked if there were variances over time. Village 
Planner Berstene stated that the sign code hasn’t changed since 1997 and it is not clear why it was set at 
the lesser amount when originally approved, but over time the signs were approved individually without 
the context of the other spaces, creating the current situation where each tenant exceeds an even 
distribution of the allowed signage. 

Member Quirke asked if there were any other successful requests for changes. Village Planner Berstene 
referenced a previous case that was considered as a variance, but was still within the total amount 
allowed by the ordinance. 

Member Quirke referenced the requirement of the ordinance that the property owner be responsible 
for allotting sign area between tenants and asked Mr. Silken Patel for history on management of signage 
as the business owner. Mr. Patel informed the commission that he purchased the property in recent 
years and this is the first substantial change under his ownership. 

Member Quirke led discussion and questioning around the history of the previous sign allotment and 
approvals to gain an understanding of how the current status came to be. 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak asked if anyone had spoken to the building owner of the other tenants about 
their signage. Mr. Silken Patel, on Zoom, stated he was the building owner. Mr. Patel stated he has not 
spoken to the tenants.  

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak asked if he was aware of the signage and the variance. Mr. Patel stated he is 
not sure how much is requested and it not sure what is allowed or permitted. 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak pointed out that by the ordinance, it is the owner’s responsibility to parcel 
out the allotted signage among businesses. Mr. Patel stated that the tenant have been there since 2001 
or 2002 and CD One Price is the first tenant under his ownership. 

Member Quirke asked there have been any changes in the signage since the ownership change. Mr. 
Patel stated no. 

Member Quirke stated all the tenants are destination businesses and that people know where they are 
going before going there. The sign on the pole is important, but the sign on the building is not as 
important to increase traffic. Village Planner Berstene stated she doesn’t think these businesses are 
categorized as a destination business, but rather convenience businesses. 

Mr. Patel stated there are around 40 locations of CD One Price Cleaners in the Chicagoland area and 
businesses with signage have better business. 

Member Zander stated the signage looks good, and reducing the scale of the signage wouldn’t be 
effective for the business. There is definitely a problem with the total area, but the scale is right. 

Member Zander asked if the other locations have the circular logo. Mr. Patel stated yes.  

3



 

Meeting Minutes | January 5, 2023 3 of 5 

C:\Users\MeetingsOfficeUser4\AppData\Local\Temp\tmp8E8E.tmp Last Revised: 02/24/2023 

 

Appearance Commission Village of Homewood 

Village Planner Berstene stated if they are looking to reduce the overall size, reducing the round logo 
could be effective. The logo is about 2 feet in diameter and if it comes down in size it would reduce the 
total sign square footage without reducing the size of the letters. 

Member Zander stated being a corporate business the signage might already be set. 

Member Quirke asked if the hanger circle can be eliminated. Mr. Patel stated it would be a half done 
sign as the logo is part of the company identity. 

Member Kidd asked if the size of the logo can be reduced. Mr. Patel stated yes, it can be done. 

Member Scheffke stated that some corporations allow different sizes of logos, and that it’s probably in 
the franchise agreement so it would be worth exploring. 

Member Quirke stated that if you look at a business like McDonald’s, there is a huge difference in the 
signs because of local ordinances. 

Mr. Patel stated they could scale down the logo without minimizing the letters to maybe 3x3 at a guess.  

Chairman Pro-tem Hrymak stated something has to be done because the variances keep getting bigger 
and bigger. And stated some kind of language that maybe any new tenants coming in need to stick to 
the allowance. He added that making the circle logo smaller will help. He wants to see equity among all 
the businesses. He then stated that they hadn’t talked about the masonry at the window or the 60% 
transparency in the windows and added that he in a favor of both of those provisions. 

Member Quirke stated his agreement with Chair Pro-tem Hrymak in favor of the changes to the 
elevations and asked if the proposed design meets the recommended condition for 60% transparency. 
Village Planner Berstene stated yes, and clarified that the requirement is currently in the draft zoning 
ordinance, not yet adopted. 

Member Quirke stated it’s not a good looking plot of land. The building looks good, but the land has no 
plantings what so ever. He proposed as a discussion point with the Commission and the property owner 
to require the owner to put in additional plantings on the east and south sides of the property. He 
stated that he is strongly opposed to the variance change, but Homewood likes to welcome new 
businesses and people that take care of their buildings, and they would like to keep the owner happy, 
but also uphold the laws. He proposed that the property owner install new plants. 

Chair Pro Tem Hrymak questioned if the Commission could require the plantings, or simply strongly 
recommend it. 

Village Planner Berstene stated that the site doesn’t have the Halsted Street Corridor landscaping 
because it hasn’t come before the commission for changes since that plan was adopted. She explained 
that often when properties come before the Appearance Commission for approvals, the status of the 
landscaping is taken into consideration and any improvements are required at that time. She referenced 
other cases where that standard has been applied recently. She went on to clarify that requirements to 
improve the landscaping should be in conjunction with the requested changes to the exterior of the 
building and the investments being made to the property, rather than associated with the sign variance. 
Village Planner Berstene continued by showing the existing requirements for the Halsted Street Corridor 
Landscape Plan and the landscape requirements of the draft zoning code- two similar but slightly 
different approaches for articulating a landscape requirement. She suggested that these two guides 
could be used as a tool to create a requirement metric for this property to improve the landscaping. 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak asked Mr. Silken Patel if he had any response. Mr. Patel stated he is not 
opposed to making the landscape improvement; he just wants it liked by the Village. He affirmed that he 

4



 

Meeting Minutes | January 5, 2023 4 of 5 

C:\Users\MeetingsOfficeUser4\AppData\Local\Temp\tmp8E8E.tmp Last Revised: 02/24/2023 

 

Appearance Commission Village of Homewood 

is willing to take the steps to make beautification improvements to the property and he plans to be an 
owner in the Village long term. Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak offered that the Village has a great arborist 
he can work with, and added that there are benefits to the business and property value of 
beautification. 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak returned the conversation to making a determination on the sign variance 
and stated his stance might be to allow up to a maximum of signage that is already there and no bigger 
and establish an equitable disbursement of the total allowed signage for the future. Member Quirke 
stated once grant the variance it stays with that property. Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak stated it has to be 
in the language that nothing it allowed to be any larger. 

Village Planner Berstene stated how the motion is worded is important and to say something that future 
tenants or signage have to comply or adhere to as the letter of the law and be clarified with the updated 
code later. It can be more specific in the motion. 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak suggested to allow the signage to be no larger than the maximum of the 
signs on the property. Village Planner Berstene stated that Pizza Hut & Jimmy John’s have larger panel 
signs on the pole, so suggested limiting this maximum to the wall signage.  

Member Quirke stated it is important to not use “required” when it comes to the plantings. And stated 
the sign is being scaled down, but it is still not in compliance and is a variance. He cautioned against 
enacting a “quid pro quo” sign variance in exchange for plantings. Village Planner Berstene suggested 
that the requirement or recommendation for landscaping should be attached to the approval of the 
exterior improvements, not the sign variance. 

Member Scheffke expressed concerns that the motion, including the property owner’s agreement to 
install plantings, seems like a quid pro quo. Village Planner Berstene explained that the Appearance 
Commission does have the authority to require landscape improvements with the request for other 
exterior changes, referencing the recent case for the gas station rebranding at 2138 W 183rd Street. The 
Commission discussed further the nuance of separating the conditions of the exterior alterations 
approval from the granting of the sign variance. 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak asked for a motion to approve Case 22-46 CD One Price Cleaners Exterior 
Alterations for 18046 Halsted Street as proposed on Sheet A210 submitted by bernache2 architecture 
dated December 8, 2022, subject to the conditions provided and add #4, the property owner agrees to 
install landscaping comparable with the new requirements for the Halsted Street landscaping plan. 
Motion was made by Member Zander; Seconded by Member Quirke. 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak asked for a motion to approve Case 22-46 CD One Price Cleaners Sign 
Variance for 18046 Halsted Street as proposed on the submitted drawings for the wall sign to be no 
larger than 43 sf, and that all future signs for each tenant of the subject property shall be held to the 
same. Motion was made by Member Quirke to recommend approval of Case 22-46 CD One Price 
Cleaners Sign Variance of 39 sf for a total of 251.5 sf; Seconded by Member Kidd.  

AYES: Scheffke, Quirke, Zander, Kidd, and Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak 
NAYS: NONE 
ABSTENTIONS: NONE 
ABSENT:  Member Preston and Chairman Wright 

OLD BUSINESS: 
Village Planner Berstene reviewed a memo providing updates on on-going development in the Village. 

5



 

Meeting Minutes | January 5, 2023 5 of 5 

C:\Users\MeetingsOfficeUser4\AppData\Local\Temp\tmp8E8E.tmp Last Revised: 02/24/2023 

 

Appearance Commission Village of Homewood 

NEW BUSINESS: 

Village Planner Berstene stated Target will be coming back with updates.  

The new zoning ordinance goes to the Village Board on January 10 for approval; it includes landscaping, 
lighting, and exterior elevations with some overlap with the Planning and Zoning & Appearance 
Commissions. Member Quirke asked if there will be a training sessions and if notes or minutes of issues 
can be collected. Village Planner Berstene stated that can be done and it’s a good idea. 

There is an update to the Appearance Commission coming with workshops and public participation. It 
has been 24 years since it was updated. 

Chairman Pro-Tem Hrymak stated Wind Creek is progressing. Village Planner Berstene stated the casino 
will probably be coming back in soon for a sign. Target is scaling back their landscape islands. Building 
Department Secretary Leonard stated the casino garage is pending the permit being issued; they are just 
waiting on some pricing to come in and it should be issued soon. There is a prepour scheduled in the 
next week for the walls for the Brewery.  

ADJOURN: 

A motion was made by Member Quirke to adjourn the meeting at 7:20 pm; Seconded by Member Kidd. 
All in favor, none opposed. Motion passed unanimously 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Angela Mesaros 
Director of Economic and Community Development 

6



VILLAGE OF HOMEWOOD 

 

Case 23-04 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM DATE OF MEETING: March 2, 2023 

To:  Appearance Commission  

From:  Valerie Berstene, Village Planner 

Topic:  Case 23-04 Building Accent  Lighting  

APPLICATION INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Tim Flanagan 

ACTION 
REQUESTED 

Approval of Accent Lighting 

ADDRESS 2033 Ridge Road 

PIN 29-31-310-023-0000 

DOCUMENTS FOR REVIEW 

Title Pages Prepared by Date 

Façade Lighting Package 4 Robert Juris & Associates Architects, Ltd - 

Staff exhibits 8 Valerie Berstene, Village Planner 03/02/2023 

BACKGROUND 
The applicant requests approval of the accent lighting for the Hartford Building, currently under 
construction at the corner of Ridge Road and Martin Avenue. The Appearance Commission reviewed the 
proposal for the new development on September 5, 2019. The current request provides the specifics of 
accent lighting not yet determined at that time. 

DISCUSSION 

The proposed building accent lighting features LED wall-mount fixtures to be installed 35’ from the 
average grade, or approximately at the floor line of the 4th floor. The fixtures will cast wall-washing light 
both up and down the face of the building. Their mounting height puts them visually centered in the 
projecting bays to be clad in a horizontal siding material. The drawings propose four lights on the north 
façade along Ridge Road and three on the east façade along Martin Avenue. The proposed lighting 
complies with the regulations of Section 44-05-12 of the Homewood Zoning Ordinance. 

CONFORMANCE WITH APPEARANCE PLAN 

When reviewing these proposed improvements, the Appearance Commission should consider the 
provisions of the Appearance Plan under the headings of H. Lighting. 

7



 

 
Case 23-04 2 of 2 

 

Appearance Commission Village of Homewood 

RECOMMENDED APPEARANCE COMMISSION ACTION 
The Appearance Commission may wish to consider the following motion: 

Approval of Case 23-04 Accent Lighting for 2033 Ridge Road as proposed on the drawings submitted by 
Robert Juris & Associates Architects, Ltd (not dated). 

8



Prepared by: Valerie Berstene, Village Planner

© 2019  Cook County.

N

2033 Ridge Road Building Accent Lighting Context Site Plan

PIN: 29-31-310-023-0000 Case 23-04 AC March 2, 2023

9



Prepared by: Valerie Berstene, Village Planner

2033 Ridge Road Building Accent Lighting Final Elevation

PIN: 29-31-310-023-0000 Case 23-04 AC March 2, 2023

10



Prepared by: Valerie Berstene, Village Planner

2033 Ridge Road Building Accent Lighting Proposed Lighting - North

PIN: 29-31-310-023-0000 Case 23-04 AC March 2, 2023

11



Prepared by: Valerie Berstene, Village Planner

2033 Ridge Road Building Accent Lighting Light Fixture

PIN: 29-31-310-023-0000 Case 23-04 AC March 2, 2023

12



Prepared by: Valerie Berstene, Village Planner

2033 Ridge Road Building Accent Lighting Proposed Lighting - East

PIN: 29-31-310-023-0000 Case 23-04 AC March 2, 2023

13



Prepared by: Valerie Berstene, Village Planner

2033 Ridge Road Building Accent Lighting Proposed Lighting - East

PIN: 29-31-310-023-0000 Case 23-04 AC March 2, 2023

14



15

15
RJA 2020

15
Typewritten Text
WEST ELEVATIONSCALE = 1/16" = 1'-0"

15
Line



16

15
RJA 2020

15
Typewritten Text
NORTH ELEVATIONSCALE = 1/16" = 1'-0"

15
Line



17



18

15
RJA 2020

15
Rectangle

15
Typewritten Text
7



LUND  
EW3207
WALL

PROJECT

EW3207-GY
Gray

EW3207-BK
Black

SPECIFICATION DETAILS
* For custom options, consult factory for details.

Fixture Dimensions D3-1/2" x H7" x E4-1/2"

Light Source AC LED Module

Total Lumens 1700lm

Delivered Lumens BK-1371lm; GY-1389lm;

Wattage 21W

Voltage 120V

Color Temperature 3000K

CRI (Ra) 90CRI

Optional Color Temps 2700K - 5000K Available, Minimum Order Quantities
Apply

LED Rated Life 50,000 hours

Diffuser Details Parabolic Aluminum Reflector

Glass Details Clear Glass

Dimming 100% - 10%, ELV Dimmer (Not Included)

Location Wet

Warranty 5 Years

Illumination Direction Up and Down

Canopy Dimensions W4-1/2" x H4-1/2" x E1/2"

DESCRIPTION
High powered LED exterior two light wall mount fixture, die-cast
aluminum housing molded into a cylinder shape with in powder coated
black or gray finishes. Concealed inside is our 120V AC LED technology
with a tempered glass diffusers radiating light upward and downward
against the wall where installed. Certified ETL wet location listed and is
available in different sizes and one light options.

Ø3-1/2”

4-1/2”

4-1/2”

4-
1/

2”
1/

2”

7”

Finish
BK - Black
GY - Gray

 

19054 28TH AVENUE

SURREY -  BC V3Z 6M3

CANADA

WWW.KUZCOLIGHTING.COM

COMMENT

19



VILLAGE OF HOMEWOOD 

 

Development Updates Memo – 03/02/2023 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM DATE OF MEETING: March 2, 2023 

To:  Appearance Commission 

From:  Valerie Berstene, Village Planner 

Through: Angela Mesaros, Director of Economic and Community Development 

Topic:  Commission and Development Updates  

NEW COMMISSION MEMBERS 

Welcome Dan Kluck, appointed to the Appearance Commission in February 2023. 

Many thanks to Jim Wright for his dedication and years of service to the Village. 

PAST CASES 

Case 19-35: The Hartford Building – Under construction. Upper floor exterior cladding installation began 
the week of February 20. 

Case 22-05: Homewood Brewing Company – Broke ground on December 2, 2022. Foundations are 
almost complete. Construction is anticipated to take about 14 months and expects to open in Q1 2024. 

Case 20-19: Metra Station – The Homewood Metra Station Rehabilitation was awarded by the Metra 
Board of Directors to IHC Construction of Elgin, IL on October 12, 2022. As of March 13th the tunnel from 
Harwood Avenue will be closed for construction. 

Case 22-22: Wind Creek Casino – A revised landscape plan was submitted and is under review by the 
Village Arborist. Construction is underway on underground utilities. 

Case 22-25: 810 Maple Building Repositioning – Exterior work is nearly complete and interior 
renovations are underway. We have received applications for sign permits. 

Case 22-27: Target Exterior Improvements – Building permits were issued for the exterior improvements 
(paint/finishes, drive-up parking area, signage).  

Case 22-28: 2138 183rd Street Gas Station – Ribbon cutting took place on February 23 and the gas station 
is open to business. 

20


	Top
	Item 3. 	01/05/2023 AC Minutes
	2023-01-05 AC.Minutes

	Item 5. 	Case 23-04: Building Accent Lighting for 2033 Ridge Road
	Ridge.2033 - 23-04.memo.AC.2023-03-02
	Ridge.2033 - 23-04.exhibits.AC.2023-03-02
	Ridge.2033 - 23-04.Facade Package

	Item 6. 	2023-03-02 AC Updates Memo
	Updates.memo.AC.2023-03-02

	Bottom

